Minutes of the Special Faculty Meeting

February 27, 2008

Seminar 2 D 1105 3-4 p.m.
Call to Order

Stephen Beck called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m.

Events Surrounding the Dead Prez Concert on February 14th and the Public Records Request Concerning those Events (Discussion)
At the beginning of the discussion, it was suggested that the Agenda Committee should be in contact with the media to give them a more complete picture of the faculty’s process in response to the events of February 14th than is currently being reported in the media.  It was suggested that one member of the AC could be designated to communicate with the media on behalf of the faculty.
Stephen introduced Maryam Jacobs, the college’s Public Records Officer (PRO), to the faculty.  She talked about the Public Records Act and some critical aspects of the law as they apply to this case, and answered specific questions about the public records request/s currently underway in regards to the incident on February 14th:

· The Public Records Act (PRA) was enacted in the 1970’s to ensure transparency in government.  It applies to, among others, any public employee and any contractor working for the state.
· The Federal Right to Privacy Act does not apply to images, so arguing that the college should not release the video recording of the images is unlikely to succeed.  Also, as the video was made by an official Student Activities Group, it will be very difficult to argue that it is not information that the public has a right to.
· The Public Records Requests (PRRs) related to this incident that have been received thus far have come from private citizens, a member of the Cooper Point Journal staff, and several students.

· In responding to Public Records Requests, the only kinds of information which can be redacted (the Public Records Officer is responsible for this) are names and personal information.  Emails that are sent using the college network, by law, are not considered private but rather public, and must be provided in accordance with the Public Records Act.
· The PRO must provide a list of any information that has been exempted or redacted in the PRR response process.  Large fines can be assessed for any information that is not provided in accordance with the law, and which is subsequently discovered.
· The only students whose communication would be covered under this act are those who are official Student Activities Advisors.

· The only limitation placed on the purposes for which PRR’s can be made is that they may not be initiated for commercial purposes.

· The email records for particular employees are not generally investigated; however, when the request or complaint is made in reference to a particular individual employee, they are notified that the request has been received and their computers may be reviewed for materials that must be provided in accordance with the PRA.  TESC Talk and TESC Crier messages have already been downloaded and are available in response to the request. 
The following were discussed:

· The need for more vigilance about the flow of public information was cited.  The potential for personal liability in such cases was expressed in a training provided for the faculty several years ago.  The need for individuals to learn how to protect themselves and each other was expressed.
· It was pointed out that at schools like the University of Washington there are no exemptions made to the PRA for research, except in cases where contracts have been written exempting the information.

· It was pointed out that when a suit is brought against an employee for actions taken in the performance of their duties in good faith, and within college policies, the college will customarily indemnify that employee.
· It was pointed out that the PRA, while it was enacted to ensure governmental transparency, has the potential to suppress collaboration in the academic community.  However, it was also pointed out that the information collected in the PRR’s is unlikely to have dire consequences for the individual employee.  Some faculty said that they were less concerned about reprisals and more concerned about the potential for the information to be used in “soundbite” fashion, where comments are excerpted and used out of context in order to make individuals or the college look bad.
· It was pointed out that the faculty passed a resolution on academic freedom in a faculty meeting (February 22, 2006) and that an argument could be made for an exemption to PRA based on Academic Freedom.
· It was said that there is a positive to this situation; that the public should see how an academic community responds to situations like this one.
· Faculty asked Maryam if the information collected as a result of the PRR would be available for review by members of the campus community.  Maryam said they would be, but asked if people could call her first to make sure she is available before coming to her office to review them.  Faculty responded that they would prefer a more flexible and transparent method of reviewing the information.

· Maryam was asked about the status of voicemail in the response to the request, and she said that while voicemails are a part of the public record, she did not know exactly what would happen with voicemail messages at this time.

· It was pointed out that despite the level of discomfort being created by the Public Records Request, the PRA was enacted to empower citizens and shouldn’t be dismissed in its importance.

Designation of Stephen Beck as Spokesperson to the Media on Behalf of the Faculty (Vote)
Andy Buchman advanced a resolution to make Stephen Beck, as the Chair of the Faculty Agenda Committee, the official spokesperson for the faculty regarding the events of February 14th and their aftermath.  The following discussion took place:

· It was said that Stephen’s background in journalism and working with journalists makes him a good person to perform this function.
· It was said that the kind of dialogue that is currently happening on campus is not one which many people feel that they can enter.  One thing that might get conveyed to the media, then, is the differences in styles of communication that are present amongst the faculty.
· It was pointed out that there were several key players in the dialogue about these events who were not able to attend the special faculty meeting.  It was said that this situation should be resolved within the community, and the faculty were reminded that some students have had bad experiences with the Olympia Police Department. 

· The pitfalls of representing other’s views were pointed out, and Stephen was asked if he could be balanced in representing other’s views.  Stephen said that he does not intend to speak for anyone, but rather to consult widely with faculty and represent the diversity of opinions to be found within them.  Andy pointed out that the faculty will have to help Stephen in order for him to do this successfully.  
The language of the resolution as voted on by the faculty:

Be it resolved that the faculty designate their Chair,  Stephen Beck, as their spokesperson to the media, working in consultation with the Agenda Committee to provide information and  represent a range of faculty views.

The faculty voted on the resolution and it passed, 28-0-6.

After the vote, concern was expressed that the faculty still have not had much of an opportunity to discuss the February 14th situation as a group.  
